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SECTION 2.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION.
 
Item 2.01.  Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.
 
This Amendment No. 1 to Form 8-K amends the Form 8-K dated March 9, 2015, originally filed by Forward Air Corporation (the
“Company”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 9, 2015 (the “Original Report”). On March 9, 2015, the
Company filed the Original Report to report the acquisition of CLP Towne Inc., as more thoroughly described therein. At the time of the
filing of the Original Report, certain financial statements were not available and, accordingly, were not filed with the Original Report. The
Company is filing this Amendment No. 1 to the Original Report to include those financial statements and the pro forma financial
information required to be filed under Item 9.01.

SECTION 9.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS.
 
Item 9.01.  Financial Statements and Exhibits.
 
(a) Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired. The following financial statements of CLP Towne Inc. are filed herewith. The financial
statements are included in this report as Exhibit 99.1 and Exhibit 99.2 hereto, which follow the signature page of this report:

Exhibit 99.1 - Audited consolidated balance sheet of CLP Towne Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Exhibit 99.2 - Unaudited consolidated balance sheet of CLP Towne Inc. as of September 30, 2014 and the related consolidated
statements of income and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.

The following financial statements of the Company are filed herewith. The financial statements are included in this report as
Exhibit 99.3 hereto, which follow the signature page of this report:

Exhibit 99.3 - Unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2014 and statements of
comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

(d) Exhibits. The following exhibits are being furnished as part of this Current Report.
 

No.

 

Exhibit
23.1 Consent of McGladrey LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
99.1 Audited consolidated balance sheet of CLP Towne Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and the related consolidated statements of

income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013.

99.2

 

Unaudited consolidated balance sheet of CLP Towne Inc. as of September 30, 2014 and the related consolidated statements of
income and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

99.3
 

Unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2014 and statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and the notes related thereto

 



SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
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   FORWARD AIR CORPORATION
Date: May 22, 2015  By: /s/ Rodney L. Bell
   Rodney L. Bell
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Audited consolidated balance sheet of CLP Towne Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013.

99.2

 

Unaudited consolidated balance sheet of CLP Towne Inc. as of September 30, 2014 and the related consolidated statements
of income and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

99.3

 

Unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2014 and statements of comprehensive
income for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and the notes related thereto



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-151198) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation Amended and Restated
Stock Option and Incentive plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 033-77944) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation Stock Option and Incentive
Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-134294) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation 2006 Non-Employee
Director Stock Plan,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-125872) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation 2005 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-120250) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation 2000 Non-Employee
Director Stock Option Award,

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-120249) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation Non-Employee Director
Stock Plan, as amended, and the Forward Air Corporation 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, as amended,

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-94249) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation 1999 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan,

(8) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-03891) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation Amended and Restated
Stock Option and Incentive Plan, and

(9) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-03893) pertaining to the Forward Air Corporation Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Award and Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan,

of our report dated April 25, 2014, relating to our audit of the consolidated financial statements of CLP Towne, Inc. as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013, included in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A.

/s/ McGladrey LLP

Elkhart, Indiana
May 22, 2015
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CLP Towne, Inc.
Consolidated Financial Report
12.31.2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Charter Towne, Inc.
South Bend, Indiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Charter Towne, Inc., which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statement of income, changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Charter Town, Inc. as of December 31, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ McGladrey LLP

Elkhart, Indiana
April 25, 2014



CLP Towne, Inc.  
  Consolidated Balance Sheets  
December 31, 2013  
    
  
ASSETS  
  
Current Assets  
Cash  $ 8,278
Trade receivables         29,849,761
Income tax receivable              187,036
Prepaid expenses and other current assets           3,333,524
  Total current assets         33,378,599
  Leasehold Improvements and Equipment, net           9,014,908
  Other Intangible Assets, net         19,292,150
  Other Assets           1,248,604
    $ 62,934,261
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  
  Current Liabilities  
  
Book overdraft  $ 961,468
Note payable           1,000,000
Current maturities of long-term debt              706,945
Accounts payable         17,646,431
Accrued salaries, wages and related liabilities           1,661,427
Accrued interest              934,723
Other accrued liabilities         10,986,354
  Total current liabilities         33,897,348
  Long-Term Debt         53,253,191
  Deferred Taxes           3,840,040
  Total liabilities         90,990,579
  Commitments and Contingencies  
  Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)  
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 6,000,000 shares  
authorized; 4,561,474 shares issued and outstanding                45,615
Additional paid-in capital

        76,297,497
Retained (deficit)     (104,399,430)
       (28,056,318)
    $ 62,934,261
  See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  



Charter Towne, Inc.  
  
Consolidated Statements of Income  
Years Ended December 31, 2013  
  
  

  
Net revenues  $ 264,726,914
  
Direct expenses     252,050,078
  
Gross profit       12,676,836
  
Operating expenses:  
Selling, general, and administrative expenses       32,420,801
Software abandonment         8,659,992
       41,080,793
  
Operating (loss)     (28,403,957)
  
Interest expense         5,055,838
  
(Loss) before income taxes     (33,459,795)
  
Income taxes          (219,473)
  
Net (loss)  $ (33,240,322)
  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  



CLP Towne, Inc.        
        
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)      
Year Ended December 31,
2013        
        
     Additional   
 Common Stock Preferred Stock Paid-in Retained  
 Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Total
        
Balance, December 31,
2012         220,374  $ 2,204           18,120  $ 181

 $
68,099,463  $ (71,159,108)  $ (3,057,260)

Stock option expense — — — —         164,264 —          164,264
Exchange of warrants for        
  common stock             7,700                 77 — —           76,923 —            77,000
Exchange of Series A
preferred        
  stock for common stock      3,533,400           35,334         (18,120)              (181)         (35,153) — —
Issuance of common stock
and        
  warrants at $10 per share
on        
  July 19, 2013         800,000            8,000 — —      7,992,000 —        8,000,000
Net loss — — — — —      (33,240,322)    (33,240,322)
Balance, December 31,
2013 4,561,474  $ 45,615 — —

 $
76,297,497  $(104,399,430)

 $
(28,056,318)

        
See Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.       



CLP Towne, Inc.  
Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows  
Years Ended December 31, 2013  
  
  
Cash Flows From Operating Activities  
Net (loss)  $ (33,240,322)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) to net  
cash provided by operating activities:  
Depreciation and amortization of equipment and improvements         3,622,409
Amortization of intangibles         5,641,089
Amortization of unfavorable lease obligations          (104,698)
Amortization of deferred financing fees            341,267
Stock based compensation            164,264
Abandonment of software         8,659,992
Paid-in-kind interest         1,673,946
Gain on sale of assets          (118,380)
Deferred income taxes          (239,000)
Change in assets and liabilities:  
Decrease (increase) in:  
Trade receivables       10,791,065
Prepaid expenses other assets         1,996,580
Income tax receivable              (2,714)
Increase in:  

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
        2,150,178

Net cash provided by operating activities         1,335,676
  
Cash Flows From Investing Activities  
Proceeds from sale of assets            144,600
Purchase of equipment and improvements       (3,026,169)
Net cash (used in) investing activities       (2,881,569)
  
Cash Flows From Financing Activities  
Payments on long-term borrowings       (6,378,982)
Issuance of common stock and warrants         8,000,000
Debt issuance costs            (75,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities         1,546,018
Increase in cash                  125
  
Cash, beginning               8,153
  
Cash, ending  $ 8,278
  
Supplemental cash flow information:  
Interest paid  $ 3,245,575
  
Exchange of warrants for common stock  $ 77,000
  
Equipment acquired under capital lease  $ 585,870
  
Income taxes, net of refunds  $ 72,521
  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Note 1. Description of Business and Significant Accounting
Policies

Charter Towne, Inc. (the “Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries are full-service providers of air cargo ground services.
The Company provides less-than-truckload common carriage, ground expediting, and ground transportation management.
The Company provides its transportation services through a network of terminals located throughout the United States. The
Company also offers in-home delivery and installation services.

On July 19, 2013, holders of the Company’s Series A preferred stock entered into an agreement with the Company’s common
stockholder’s resulting in the common stockholders relinquishing their controlling interest in the Company. The transaction
was effected by the Securities Purchase and Exchange Agreement (the “SPEA”) dated as of July 19, 2013. The SPEA
contained an agreement to sell and issue 800,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 268,322 of common
stock for $8 million and to authorize and issue 3,533,400 shares of common stock in exchange for all the issued and
outstanding redeemable Series A preferred stock of the Company. In conjunction with the SPEA, each share of the Company’s
common stock was converted into and became 0.0391 shares of common stock reflecting a 1 for 25.57 reverse stock split (the
“Stock Split”) of the common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of the SPEA. As of July 19, 2013, a total
of 4,561,474 shares of common stock are outstanding. Further, the Company issued an additional 268,329 warrants (the
Warrants) for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock. Together with the SPEA and Stock Split, the Company
amended its credit agreements (see Note 4).

In preparing its consolidated financial statements, the Company evaluated subsequent events through April 25, 2014, the date
the Company’s consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.

Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Charter Towne, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue and related costs from the Company’s primary trucking operations are recognized as of the date freight is delivered.
Revenue and related costs from the Company’s brokerage operations are recognized when freight is picked up. Revenue and
related costs from the Company’s in-home delivery operations are recognized when the appliances are delivered and installed.

The transportation rates the Company charges its customers consist of base transportation rates and fuel surcharge rates.
Fuel surcharges included in net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013 were approximately $47.0 million.

Concentrations of risk:

The Company offers a multitude of delivery services to a diverse customer base. On an ongoing basis, the Company performs
credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral. In addition, management believes the Company
has no significant supplier, product line, credit risk, or other concentrations that could expose the Company to adverse, near-
term, severe financial impact, with the exception of the Company’s largest customer, from whom the Company generated 13%
($28.4 million) of revenue in 2013.



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

The Company does not receive collateral from its customers. The Company evaluates the collectability of its accounts
receivable based on a combination of factors. In circumstances in which management is aware of a specific customer’s
inability to meet its financial obligations to the Company (for example, bankruptcy filings, accounts turned over for collection, or
litigation), the Company records a specific reserve for these bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net recognized
receivable to the amount the Company reasonably believes will be collected. For all other customers, the Company recognizes
reserves for these bad debts based on the length of time the receivables are past due. Trade receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2013 are stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately
$742,000. Accounts are written off after all practical means of collection, including legal action, have been exhausted.

The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts also includes anticipated revenue adjustments from billing rate changes that
are not captured upon shipment initiation and billing.

Leasehold improvements and equipment:

Leasehold improvements and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation of equipment is provided by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. Significant
improvements and betterments are capitalized; maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Indefinite-lived intangible asset:

The Company accounts for indefinite-lived intangible assets under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
350-20, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Goodwill”. ASC 350-20 requires the Company to evaluate the carrying value of
indefinite-lived intangible assets for potential impairment on an annual basis. The Company’s trade name is an indefinite-lived
intangible asset.

No impairment on the Company’s trade name asset was recognized during this period.

Impairment of long-lived tangible and definite-lived intangible assets:

The Company periodically considers whether indicators of impairment of long-lived tangible and definite-lived intangible assets
are present. When indicators of impairment are present, the Company determines whether the sum of the estimated future
undiscounted cash flows attributable to the assets in question is less than their carrying value. If less, the Company
recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount of the assets over their respective fair values. The
Company determined there was no impairment of long-lived tangible assets during this period.

Self-insurance loss reserves:

Given the nature of the Company’s operating environment, the Company is subject to general liability, vehicle liability, and
workers’ compensation claims. Under an agreement with its insurance underwriters, the Company acts as a self-insurer for
auto liability and workers’ compensation but has obtained insurance coverage for catastrophic losses, as well as those risks
required to be insured by law. The Company is liable for the first $100,000 of claim costs per incident under its general liability,
vehicle liability, and workers’ compensation policies. The Company accrues for the uninsured portion of pending claims, both
known and incurred but not reported. These accruals are provided based on management’s evaluation of the nature and
severity of claims, after taking into consideration third-party evaluations, the Company’s historical claims experience, and loss
developments. The most significant assumptions used in the estimation process include determining the trend in loss costs,
the expected consistency in the frequency and severity of claims incurred but not yet reported to prior year claims, changes in
the timing of the reporting of losses from the loss date to the notification date, and expected costs to settle unpaid claims.
Management also monitors the reasonableness of the judgments made in the prior year’s estimation process and adjusts
current year assumptions based on this analysis. Such adjustments have not been material. Claims reserves of approximately
$2,618,000 have been accrued at December 31, 2013, which are included in other accrued liabilities.



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Income taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequence of events that have been recognized in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. Income taxes are recognized during the year in which the underlying transactions are
reflected in the consolidated statement of income. Deferred taxes are provided for temporary differences between amounts of
assets and liabilities as recorded for financial reporting purposes and amounts recorded for tax purposes. After determining the
total amount of deferred tax assets, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that some portion of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. If the Company determines that a deferred tax asset is not likely to be realized, a
valuation allowance is established against that asset to record it at its expected realizable value.

The Company has not recorded a reserve for any tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which
there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. The Company files tax returns in all appropriate jurisdictions, which
includes a U.S. federal tax return and various states. The company is not subject to tax examinations by the U.S. federal,
state, or local tax authorities for years before 2010. There are no unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2013.

Fair value measurements:

The Company uses a framework for measuring fair value of all financial instruments that are being measured and reported on
a fair value basis. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses
various methods including market, income and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, the Company often utilizes
certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or
the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally non observable inputs. The Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques, the
Company is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks
the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will
be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York Stock
Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal agency mortgage-
backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets. Valuations are obtained from
readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations are obtained
from third-party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market exchange,
dealer, or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in
determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

There have been no changes in methodologies used at December 31, 2013.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The Company's financial instruments not required to be adjusted to fair value on a recurring basis consist principally of cash,
receivables, long-term debt and accounts payable. The Company believes cash, receivables and accounts payable are
recorded at amounts that approximate their current market values based on their short-term nature. The fair value of the long-
term debt instruments approximates their carrying value based on the current market rates and debt instruments of similar risk.



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Stock-based compensation:

The Company recognizes compensation cost for all equity awards based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718-10, “Compensation - Stock Compensation”, on a straight-line attribution method.

Independent contractors:

The Company contracts with independent contractor owners of transportation equipment under the terms of short-term
agreements. These agreements contain consecutive automatic renewal periods and are cancelable by either party. The
agreements provide the Company with exclusive use of the independent contractor’s equipment and services, for which the
Company compensates the independent contractor generally on a per mile and load basis, subject to certain escalation
clauses as defined in the agreements. The Company evaluates whether its arrangements with independent contractors
contain a lease at the inception of each arrangement and conducts a reassessment when the contract is modified or when
other changes are made. Costs under these arrangements are expensed as incurred as purchased transportation and are
recorded within direct expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Lease guarantees:

The Company provides limited guarantees to third-party leasing companies with respect to leases entered into by independent
contractors engaged by the Company. Upon a default by the independent contractor, the Company at its option may buy out
the lease at a substantial discount or is provided a “reseating period”. The reseating period allows a definitive period for the
leasing company to re-lease the same vehicle. Until the truck is reseated, the Company is generally obligated for expenses
and lease payments due the leasing company. At December 31, 2013, the aggregate lease payments due under agreements
with limited guarantees was approximately $259,000 while the fair value of the guarantee was not material.



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Note 2. Intangible
Assets

Intangible assets at December 31, 2013 are as follows:

 
 Estimated Useful

Life 
   
Customer relationships  $ 49,166,600 5 – 11 years
Trade name             9,600,100 Indefinite life
Non-compete agreements             3,723,700 5 years
Information technology systems                933,000 5 years
           63,423,400  
Less accumulated amortization           44,131,250  
Intangible assets, net  $ 19,292,150  

Total amortization expense from definite-lived intangibles for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately
$5,641,000.

The following table presents the Company’s estimate of amortization expense for each of the three succeeding fiscal years for
definite-lived intangibles as of December 31, 2013:

2014   $ 4,341,984
2015        3,631,795
2016        1,718,271
   $ 9,692,050

The Company performed an impairment evaluation of its trade name intangible asset as of December 31, 2013. The Company
estimated the fair value of trade name intangible assets using a relief from royalty method. The relief from royalty method is
based on a discounted cash flow analysis and calculates the fair value of the trade name intangible assets by estimating the
after-tax cash flows attributable to it and then discounting the after-tax cash flows to a present value, using a weighted average
cost of capital of 17%. Based on the analysis, it was determined that the fair value of the trade name intangible assets
exceeded the carrying value.

The Company’s estimates assume that revenues will steadily grow into the foreseeable future. There can be no assurance that
the Company’s estimates and assumptions will prove to be accurate predictions of the future. If the Company’s assumptions
regarding business plans, competitive environments or anticipated operating results are not correct, the Company may be
required to record impairment charges in future periods.



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Note 3. Equipment and
Improvements

Equipment and improvements, at cost, and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization as of December 31, 2013
are as follows:

Revenue equipment  $ 8,583,195
Other equipment       7,931,143
Leasehold improvements       6,559,210
     23,073,548
Less accumulated depreciation     14,058,640
  $ 9,014,908

The cost of equipment capitalized under capital lease obligations, included in revenue equipment, and the related accumulated
amortization was $2,118,546 and $677,152 respectively.

In response to the ownership change in July 2013, the Company evaluated its ongoing software conversion project. Based on
the current performance of the software relative to the investment, the belief that migrating any additional business to the
software would jeopardize the company, and the current difficult business conditions; additional funding for the project has
ceased. The company therefore recorded an abandonment charge of approximately $8,660,000 and is in the process of
exploring alternative solutions.



Charter Towne, Inc.
See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Note 4. Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt and capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2013:

Revolver loan payable to Ally Commercial Finance LLC f/k/a
GMAC Commercial Finance LLC, as amended, interest payable
monthly (effective weighted-average interest rate of 7.04%),
additional available borrowings of $3,304,456, matures May 22,
2016

  
  
  
  
  $ 15,400,000

   
Term Loan B payable to Ally Commercial Finance LLC f/k/a GMAC
Commercial Finance LLC, as amended, interest payable monthly
(effective weighted-average interest rate of 6.7%) matures May 22,
2016

  
  
  
       19,920,600

   

Senior Subordinated Notes issued to OCM Mezzanine Fund II, L.P.
(a related party), as amended, will bear interest calculated on a 360-
day basis and payable quarterly in arrears, at an annual rate of
13.00% through April 30, 2014, and 11.00% from May 1, 2014, to
maturity. Interest through April 30, 2014, will be added to the
principal amount of the Notes, and interest thereafter will be payable
in cash on a quarterly basis, matures November 22, 2016.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
       14,395,780

   
Subordinated Note to former owner of Texas L&A (a related party),
interest payable in cash monthly (annual interest rate of 10%),
matures August 12, 2016

  
  
         1,440,000

   

Subordinated Notes to former owner of Texas L&A (a related party),
interest payable semiannually (annual interest rate of 10%) and, at
the option of the Company, accrued and unpaid interest may be
added to the principal amount of the notes, matures August 12, 2016

  
  
  
  
         1,585,652

   

Capital lease obligations (various interest rates and maturities)
  
         1,218,104

        53,960,136
Less current maturities            706,945
   $ 53,253,191

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the years ended December 31, 2015 through 2018 and thereafter as adjusted for
subsequent refinancing are as follows:

2015   $ 2,595,731
2016        50,568,413
2017              42,787
2018              46,260
   $ 53,253,191
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Revolver and Term Loan B:

Towne Air Freight, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary (the “Borrower”); Ally Commercial Finance LLC f/k/a GMAC Commercial
Finance LLC (“Ally”), as Agent and Lender; and Fifth Third Bank (“Chicago”), as Loan Party, entered into a Loan and Security
Agreement (the “LSA”) to provide working capital and funds for other general corporate purposes. The LSA, as amended on
June 19, 2013, provides for credit facilities, which consist of a $28.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”), with a $5.0
million sub-limit for standby and commercial letters of credit; and a $22.1 million term loan B (the “Term Loan B”). Borrowings
under the Revolver are subject to a borrowing base that is based on eligible receivables, as defined. The LSA has a maturity
date, with respect to the Revolver and the Term Loan B, of May 22, 2016. At the Borrower’s option, the Revolver and the Term
Loan B bear interest at the following rates: (i) Revolver - LIBOR plus 5.0% or the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System Bank Prime Loan rate (Prime) plus 5.0% calculated on a 360-day basis and payable monthly in arrears, (ii) Term Loan
B - LIBOR plus 5.0% or Prime plus 5.0% calculated on a 360-day basis and payable monthly in arrears. The LSA defines
LIBOR as the higher of 1.5% or the actual LIBOR rate per annum. In addition, there is a .50% fee payable monthly in arrears
on the average daily unused amount of the Revolver.

The Borrower’s obligations under the LSA are secured by a security interest in and lien upon all of the Borrower’s real and
personal property. Additionally, the Company and each of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Guarantors”) guarantee the
obligations of the Borrower and have granted to Ally a security interest in and lien upon all of the real and personal property of
the Guarantors.

The LSA contains, among other provisions, certain restrictive covenants, including minimum EBITDA, a maximum total
leverage ratio, a maximum senior leverage ratio, a limit on capital expenditures, and a minimum fixed-charge coverage ratio.
Subsequent to December 31, 2012, the Company was not in compliance with certain additional covenants and pursuant to
Amendment No. 10 to the LSA date July 19, 2013, the creditors agreed to waive the violations, modify the restrictive
covenants and extend the maturity for the repayment of the loans. The amended LSA stipulates, among other things, the
Company attain a monthly minimum liquidity amount, limit capital expenditures, and attain a minimum fixed-charge coverage
ratio. The Company is required to comply with the minimum liquidity covenant each fiscal month, the capital expenditures
covenant beginning October 31, 2013, and the fixed charge coverage ratio beginning October 31, 2014, and measured on a
trailing four-quarter basis thereafter.

The LSA allows the Borrower to make voluntary prepayments at any time so long as the balance outstanding under the LSA
obligations is not less than $5,000,000. The LSA includes provisions for additional principal payments based on excess cash
flow whereby the Company is required to make a mandatory principal payment equal to 50% of excess cash flow, as defined.
The Company does not anticipate making additional principal payments during fiscal year 2014.

The Company was contingently liable for outstanding letters of credit of $3,934,332 at December 31, 2013, primarily in
connection with high-deductible insurance plans.

Senior subordinated notes:

The Company issued to OCM Mezzanine Fund II, L.P. (“OCM”, a related party) senior subordinated notes (the “Notes”) in an
aggregate principal amount of $17,500,000. On July 19, 2013, contemporaneous with the execution of Amendment No. 10 to
the LSA, OCM and the Company executed Amendment No. 15 to the Notes. Pursuant to the amendment, the maturity date of
the Notes was extended to November 22, 2016. Additionally, the Notes will bear interest calculated on a 360-day basis and
payable quarterly in arrears, at an annual rate of 13.00% through April 30, 2014, and 11.00% from May 1, 2014, to maturity.
Interest through April 30, 2014, will be added to the principal amount of the Notes, and interest thereafter will be payable in
cash on a quarterly basis.

The Notes, as amended, are due on November 22, 2016. Prior to maturity, the Company has the right to redeem the Notes by
payment of the principal amount of the Notes. Any prepayment must be in a minimum amount of $2,000,000 with minimum
increments of $250,000 thereof plus a premium equal to the applicable percentage multiplied by the principal amount to be
redeemed in the prepayment year, determined as follows: (i) 1.0% premium for the 12-month period ended December 31,
2011, or (ii) 0.0% premium for the 12-month period ended December 21, 2012 and thereafter.
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On March 24, 2014, the Company executed Amendment No. 16 to the Notes. Pursuant to the amendment, the Notes will bear
interest calculated on a 360-day basis and payable quarterly in arrears, at an annual rate of 13.0% through December 31,
2014. This interest will be added to the principal amount of the Notes. Interest from January 1, 2015, thereafter, will accrue at a
rate 11% per annum, which amount shall be payable in cash quarterly in arrears on each Quarterly Payment date. At the
option of the Company, the amount payable on March 31, 2015 may be payable at the rate of (i)13.0% per annum with respect
to 50% of the unpaid principal amount of the Notes, which amount shall be added to the principal amount of the Notes on such
quarterly payment date and (ii) 11.0% per annum with respect to 50% of the unpaid principal amount of the Notes, which
amount shall be payable in cash quarterly in arrears on such quarterly payment date.

The Notes contain, among other provisions, certain restrictive covenants, including minimum EBITDA, a maximum total
leverage ratio, a maximum senior leverage ratio, a limit on capital expenditures, and a minimum fixed-charge coverage ratio.

The Company and each of its subsidiaries each unconditionally guarantee, as primary obligor, the payment of principal,
interest, and premium, if any, on the Notes when due.

In accordance with a subordination agreement dated November 22, 2005, the Notes are subordinated in right of payment to
the prior payment of the obligations of the LSA defined previously.

Subordinated notes:

Texas L&A Notes

The Company issued nonnegotiable subordinated notes (the Texas L&A Notes) to the former owner of Texas Land & Air, Inc.
(“Texas L&A”, a related party), acquired by the Company in 2008, in the aggregate original principal amount of $2,525,000 with
a maturity date of August 12, 2016.

The Texas L&A Notes are divided into two tranches. A Texas L&A Note of $1,440,000 bears interest, calculated on a 360-day
basis and payable semiannually in arrears, at an annual rate of 10%, payable in cash. Texas L&A Notes originally totaling
$1,085,000 bear interest, calculated on a 360-day basis and payable semiannually in arrears, at an annual rate of 10%, all of
which may be added to the principal amount of the Texas L&A Notes. During the year ended December 31, 2013, $147,419,
were added to the principal amount of the Texas L&A Notes.

The Company has guaranteed, as primary obligor, the payment of principal, interest, and premium, if any, on the Texas L&A
Notes when due.

HBI Seller Note

The Company issued a nonnegotiable subordinated note (the “HBI Seller Note”) to the former owner of HBI (a related party) in
the aggregate original principal amount of $1,500,000.

In accordance with the provisions of the HBI Seller Note, in the event that a target operating income for the in-home delivery
business is not achieved, the principal amount shall be reduced by $500,000 with each such reduction to be deemed effective
as of the date hereof and any interest accrued on such reduced principal shall be deemed null and void. The target was met
for the November 16, 2011 and the November 16, 2012 measurement dates. The HBI Seller Note also incorporates the
purchase-related indemnity obligations of the holder.

The HBI Seller Note bears interest at a rate of 12% per annum, compounded annually, and will accrue on the outstanding
principal amount of the note (after giving effect to any principal reductions as described above).

As of December 31, 2013, $1,000,000 of the original HBI Seller Note was past due. The Note was not paid to fully comply with
the subordination clause. Interest continues to accrue at a rate of 12% per annum.
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Note 5. Benefit
Plan

The Company has a profit-sharing plan for substantially all eligible employees. Contributions are discretionary and determined
annually. The contributions under this plan for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately $77,000

Note 6. Income
Taxes

Components of income tax (benefit) expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Current:  
Federal  $ (46,473)
State            66,000
            19,527
Deferred:  
Federal        (203,150)
State          (35,850)
        (239,000)
  $ (219,473)
Total:  
Federal  $ (249,623)
State            30,150
  $ (219,473)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:  
Accruals and liabilities  $ 2,351,000
Equipment and improvements       2,232,000
Net operating loss carryforwards     10,205,000
Other intangibles       1,901,040
Share-based compensation          307,000
AMT credits            80,000
     17,076,040
  
Deferred tax liabilities:  
Tradename  $ (3,840,040)
Prepaids        (299,000)
      (4,139,040)
Less valuation reserve    (16,777,040)
    (20,916,080)
  
  Net deferred taxes  $ (3,840,040)
  

The Company has state and federal net operating loss carryforwards (the “NOL”) of approximately $25,514,000, which begin
to expire in 2025.

As of December 31, 2013, management has determined that it is more likely than not that the tax benefit of the Company’s
deferred tax assets may not be realized in the future; therefore, a valuation reserve has been recorded.
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Note 7. Stock Option
Plan

The Company has an equity compensation plan, which reserves shares of common stock for the issuance to executives, key
employees, directors, and others. In 2013, the company modified its plan.

The modified 2013 plan consists of time-vesting options that vest and are recognized on a straight-line basis over a seven-
year period. The Company’s 2005 plan consists of both time-vesting and performance-based options. Time-vesting options
from the 2005 plan vest and are recognized on a straight-line basis over a five-year period. The stock options under both plans
expire ten years from the date of grant. Performance-based options from the 2005 plan are eligible for exercise on the date the
Company’s partnership fund receives internal rate of return or multiple of investment targets upon sale of its common stock of
the Company as outlined in plan documents. All stock options have an exercise price of no less than 100% of fair market value
of a share of common stock at the time of grant.

The following is a summary of changes in the number of stock options outstanding:

Balance at beginning of year             25,738
Granted           368,674
Exercised  0
Cancelled            (11,193)
Expired  0
Balance at end of year           383,219

There were 9,798 options exercisable at December 31, 2013. There were 170,384 stock options available for grant at
December 31, 2013. All options have an exercise price of $10 per option.

The value of the Company’s fiscal 2013 stock-based awards under ASC 718-10 was estimated using the Black-Scholes-
Merton option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions: expected life of 6.5 years, risk-free interest rate
of 1.95%, volatility rate of approximately 30%, and dividend rate of 0%. The expected life of 6.5 years is based on
management’s expectation that, on average, stock options will be exercised upon becoming fully vested. The Company has
not declared dividends on common stock and does not expect to do so in the foreseeable future. Stock-based compensation
expense recognized for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately $164,000. As of December 31, 2013, total
compensation costs related to nonvested awards not yet recognized was approximately $948,000, which will be recognized
over each of the next five fiscal years.

Note 8. Preferred Stock and Common Stock
Warrants

On November 16, 2010 (the Closing Date), the Company issued no par Series A preferred stock (the “Preferred Shares”). In
addition, the Company issued 7,700 warrants (the “Warrants”) for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock at
an exercise price of $0.01 per share. Net proceeds from the issuance totaled approximately $16,670,000 and were used to
fund an acquisition, including transaction costs and to repay outstanding indebtedness.

As discussed in Note 1, on July 19, 2013 the SPEA authorized and issued 3,533,400 shares of common stock in exchange for
all of the issued and outstanding redeemable Series A preferred stock of the Company. In addition, the Company issued 7,700
warrants for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock. Thus, all preferred stock and existing warrants
outstanding as of the date of the transaction were fully converted to common stock and none remained outstanding as of July
19, 2013. The fair value of the warrants at the date of the transaction was $77,000 valued in light of the related stock
transaction and was reclassified from debt to additional paid in capital as of the date of the transaction.

Warrants were issued on July 19, 2013 in connection with the SPEA for the purchase of 268,322 shares of the Company’s
common stock in connection with the issuance of common stock as outlined in Note 1. The warrants have an initial exercise
price of $15 per share subject to certain anti-dilution and other adjustments
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Note 9. Commitments and
Contingencies

Operating lease commitments:

The Company has various operating leases for real property expiring through January 2021. Generally, the leases require the
Company to pay property taxes, insurance, and maintenance on the leased property. The Company also leases equipment
under various operating leases (including contracts with independent contractors accounted for as leases) through December
2019. Future minimum rental payments under these operating lease agreements are approximately as follows:

 Real  Equipment  
 Property  Leases Total
    

2014  $ 10,949,000  $ 1,943,000  $ 12,892,000
2015      9,966,000      1,410,000    11,376,000
2016      9,152,000      1,152,000    10,304,000
2017      8,284,000         646,000      8,930,000
2018      6,694,000         646,000      7,340,000
Thereafter      7,197,000         264,000      7,461,000
  $ 52,242,000  $ 6,061,000  $ 58,303,000

Rent expense for real property leases for the year ended December 31, 2013 aggregated approximately $12,332,000, of which
approximately $59,000 were paid to related parties.

Rent expense for equipment leases aggregated approximately $7,705,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

In connection with the purchase of the Company, by Charterhouse, in November 2005, the Company recognized an
unfavorable lease obligation related to real property leases of approximately $1.7 million, which is being recognized as a
reduction of rent expense over the respective lives of the leases of four to eight years. Rent expense for real property leases
was reduced for the year ended December 31, 2013 by approximately $128,000.

Litigation:

From time to time, the Company is a party to litigation arising in the normal course of its business, most of which involves
claims for personal injury, property damage related to the transportation and handling of freight, or workers’ compensation. The
Company does not believe that any of these pending actions, individually or in the aggregate, will have a materially adverse
effect on its business, financial position, or results of operations.

Note 10. Related-Party
Transactions

Upon the request of Centre Lane Partners, LLC (“Centre Lane”), the majority owner of the Company, the Company is
contractually obligated to pay a management fee to Centre Lane equal to the greater of $300,000 or 2% of the Company’s
EBITDA, as outlined in the stockholders’ agreement. At year end, there was $75,000 of fees accrued.

OCM Mezzanine Fund II (“OCM”) has an equity interest in the Company. On November 22, 2005, the Company issued to
OCM senior subordinated notes in an aggregate principal amount of $17,500,000. Interest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2013, related to this obligation was approximately $1,918,000 of which approximately $156,000 was accrued at
December 31, 2013, and approximately $1,526,000 was added to principal. On June 22, 2012, Term B borrowings were
increased to fund the pay down of OCM Mezzanine Fund II $9,500,000 million.

On August 12, 2009, the Company issued to the former owner of Texas L&A an equity interest in the Company in the form of
notes aggregating $2,525,000. Interest expense related to this obligation totaled approximately $296,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2013, of which approximately $76,000 was added to the principal.
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On November 16, 2010, the Company issued to the former owner of HBI, an equity interest in the Company in the form of a
nonnegotiable subordinated note in the amount of $1,500,000. Interest expense related to this obligation totaled approximately
$122,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Note 11. Subsequent
Events

The Company amended the LSA and the Notes on March 24, 2014. The amendment allowed for modifications of certain
restrictive covenants.

Additionally, the LSA, as amended, issued Unsecured Subordinated (2014) Notes in the amount of $4,000,000. The Notes
contain a convertible feature which preferred stock shall have a par value of $10.0 per share, with 400,000 shares of preferred
stock issued. Liquidation preference shall be (a) 5 times $10.0 per share if the preferred stock is redeemed within 12 months of
issuance, (b) 7 times $10.0 per share if the preferred stock is redeemed 12 and 24 months of issuance and (c) 8.5 times $10.0
per share if the preferred stock is redeemed between 24 and 33 months of issuance.
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CLP Towne, Inc.
South Bend, Indiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have reviewed the consolidated financial statements of CLP Towne, Inc. as of September 30, 2014, and for the nine-month
periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Management’s Responsibility

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial information
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this responsibility includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control sufficient to provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and fair
presentation of interim financial information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct our review in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of interim financial information consists principally of
applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial information. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the condensed financial
information for it to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ McGladrey LLP

Elkhart, Indiana
May 22, 2015



CLP Towne, Inc.   
   Consolidated Balance Sheet   
September 30, 2014 (Unaudited)   
      
   
ASSETS   
   
Current Assets   
Cash   $ 7,347
Trade receivables        30,775,128
Income tax receivable            152,036
Prepaid expenses and other current assets          3,141,041
Deferred income taxes          2,669,000
   Total current assets        36,744,552
   Leasehold Improvements and Equipment, net          7,065,915
   Other Intangible Assets, net        15,919,290
   Other Assets            984,013
      $ 60,713,770
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY   
   Current Liabilities   
   
Book overdraft   $ 1,470,843
Note payable          1,000,000
Current maturities of long-term debt          2,227,722
Accounts payable        16,391,066
Accrued salaries, wages and related liabilities          1,595,731
Accrued interest            959,805
Other accrued liabilities        11,375,890
   Total current liabilities        35,021,057
   Long-Term Debt        55,023,158
   Deferred Taxes          6,509,040
   Total liabilities        96,553,255
   Commitments and Contingencies   
   Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)   
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 6,000,000 shares   

authorized; 456,147 shares issued and outstanding
               4,561

Preferred stock, $10.00 par value, 400,000 shares   
authorized, issued and outstanding          4,000,000
Additional paid-in capital        76,492,740
Retained (deficit)     (116,336,786)
      (35,839,485)
      $ 60,713,770
   See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.   



Charter Towne, Inc.    
    
Consolidated Statements of Income    
Nine Month Periods Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited)    
    
  2014 2013
    
Net revenues   $ 193,646,419  $ 200,309,829
    
Direct expenses     179,690,185    201,449,819
    
Gross profit (loss)       13,956,234       (1,139,990)
    
Selling, general, and administrative expenses       22,237,239      15,219,762
Software adandonment  —        8,661,077
    
Operating (loss)        (8,281,005)     (25,020,829)
    
Interest expense         3,656,354        3,863,776
    
(Loss) before income taxes      (11,937,359)     (28,884,605)
    
Income taxes  —        1,436,285
    
Net (loss)   $ (11,937,359)  $ (30,320,890)
    
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.    



CLP Towne, Inc.   
Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows   
Nine Month Periods Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited)   
   
 2014 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities   
Net (loss)  $(11,937,359)  $(30,320,890)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) to net   
cash (used in) provided by operating activities:   
Depreciation and amortization of equipment and improvements       2,267,006       2,816,155
Amortization of intangibles       3,372,861       4,315,025
Amortization of deferred financing fees          281,966          247,678
Amortization of unfavorable lease obligations 0         (104,698)
Stock based compensation          154,192          129,989
Abandonment of software 0       8,661,077
Paid-in-kind interest       1,772,913       1,220,811
Gain on sale of assets           (66,305)         (146,262)
Deferred income taxes 0         (238,960)
Change in assets and liabilities:   
Decrease (increase) in:   
Trade receivables         (925,367)      11,033,292
Prepaid expenses other assets          358,715       2,165,189
Income tax receivable            35,000            (2,714)

Increase (decrease) in:   

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities         (397,068)       2,740,573
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities      (5,083,446)       2,516,265
   
Cash Flows From Investing Activities   
Proceeds from sale of assets            66,595          114,150
Purchase of equipment and improvements         (273,724)      (2,960,843)
Net cash used in investing activities         (207,129)      (2,846,693)
   
Cash Flows From Financing Activities   
Payments on long-term borrowings         (526,749)      (6,371,852)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings       2,000,000 0
Issuance of preferred stock       4,000,000       8,000,000
Debt issuance costs         (183,607) 0
Net cash provided by financing activities       5,289,644       1,628,148
(Decrease) increase in cash               (931)       1,297,720
   
Cash, beginning              8,278              8,153
   
Cash, ending  $ 7,347  $ 1,305,873
   
Supplemental cash flow information:   
Interest paid  $ 1,742,709  $ 4,260,444
   
Exchange of warrants for common stock 0  $ 77,000
   
Equipment acquired under capital lease  $ 44,580 0
   
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.   



CLP Towne, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

Note 1. Description of Business and Significant Accounting
Policies

CLP Towne, Inc. (the “Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries are full-service providers of air cargo ground services.
The Company provides less-than-truckload common carriage, ground expediting, and ground transportation management.
The Company provides its transportation services through a network of terminals located throughout the United States.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United
States generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information. In the opinion of management, all adjustments
(consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The Company’s
operating results are subject to seasonal trends when measured on a quarterly basis; therefore operating results for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the years
ending December 31, 2014 and 2013.

On July 19, 2013, holders of the Company’s Series A preferred stock entered into an agreement with the Company’s common
stockholder’s resulting in the common stockholders relinquishing their controlling interest in the Company. The transaction
was effected by the Securities Purchase and Exchange Agreement (the “SPEA”) dated as of July 19, 2013. The SPEA
contained an agreement to sell and issue 800,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 268,322 of common
stock for $8 million and to authorize and issue 3,533,400 shares of common stock in exchange for all the issued and
outstanding redeemable Series A preferred stock of the Company. In conjunction with the SPEA, each share of the Company’s
common stock was converted into and became 0.0391 shares of common stock reflecting a 1 for 25.57 reverse stock split (the
“Stock Split”) of the common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of the SPEA. As of July 19, 2013, a total
of 4,561,474 shares of common stock were outstanding. Further, the Company issued an additional 268,329 warrants (the
Warrants) for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock. Together with the SPEA and Stock Split, the Company
amended its credit agreements (see Note 4). In August 2014, the Company issued a 1 for 100 reverse stock split of the
outstanding common stock. This split has been retroactively adjusted throughout the report.

In preparing its consolidated financial statements, the Company evaluated subsequent events through May 22, 2015, the date
the Company’s consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.

Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CLP Towne, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Significant accounting policies:

Use of estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue and related costs from the Company’s primary trucking operations are recognized as of the date freight is delivered.
Revenue and related costs from the Company’s brokerage operations are recognized when freight is picked up. Revenue and
related costs from the Company’s in-home delivery operations are recognized when the appliances are delivered and installed.

The transportation rates the Company charges its customers consist of base transportation rates and fuel surcharge rates.
Fuel surcharges included in net revenues for the period ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $32.6 and
$36.9 million respectively.
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Concentrations of risk:

The Company offers a multitude of delivery services to a diverse customer base. On an ongoing basis, the Company performs
credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral. In addition, management believes the Company
has no significant supplier, product line, credit risk, or other concentrations that could expose the Company to adverse, near-
term, severe financial impact with the exception of the Company’s largest customer, from whom the Company generated 13%
($28.4 million) of revenue in 2013. There were no major customers in 2014.

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

The Company does not receive collateral from its customers. The Company evaluates the collectability of its accounts
receivable based on a combination of factors. In circumstances in which management is aware of a specific customer’s
inability to meet its financial obligations to the Company (for example, bankruptcy filings, accounts turned over for collection, or
litigation), the Company records a specific reserve for these bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net recognized
receivable to the amount the Company reasonably believes will be collected. For all other customers, the Company recognizes
reserves for these bad debts based on the length of time the receivables are past due. Trade receivables in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2014 is stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately
$542,000. Accounts are written off after all practical means of collection, including legal action, have been exhausted.

The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts also includes anticipated revenue adjustments from billing rate changes that
are not captured upon shipment initiation and billing.

Leasehold improvements and equipment:

Leasehold improvements and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation of equipment is provided by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. Significant
improvements and betterments are capitalized; maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on assets
under capital lease is included with depreciation of owned assets.

Indefinite-lived intangible asset:

The Company accounts for indefinite-lived intangible assets under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
350-20, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Goodwill”. ASC 350-20 requires the Company to evaluate the carrying value of
indefinite-lived intangible assets for potential impairment on an annual basis. The Company’s trade name is an indefinite-lived
intangible asset.

No impairment on the Company’s trade name asset was recognized at September 30, 2014.

Impairment of long-lived tangible and definite-lived intangible assets:

The Company periodically considers whether indicators of impairment of long-lived tangible and definite-lived intangible assets
are present. When indicators of impairment are present, the Company determines whether the sum of the estimated future
undiscounted cash flows attributable to the assets in question is less than their carrying value. If less, the Company
recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount of the assets over their respective fair values. The
Company determined there was no impairment of long-lived tangible assets at September 30, 2014.

Self-insurance loss reserves:

Given the nature of the Company’s operating environment, the Company is subject to general liability, vehicle liability, and
workers’ compensation claims. Under an agreement with its insurance underwriters, the Company acts as a self-insurer for
auto liability and workers’ compensation but has obtained insurance coverage for catastrophic losses, as well as those risks
required to be insured by law. The Company is liable for the first $100,000 of claim costs per incident under its general liability,
vehicle liability, and workers’ compensation policies. The Company accrues for the uninsured portion of pending claims, both
known and incurred but not reported. These accruals are
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provided based on management’s evaluation of the nature and severity of claims, after taking into consideration third-party
evaluations, the Company’s historical claims experience, and loss developments. The most significant assumptions used in the
estimation process include determining the trend in loss costs, the expected consistency in the frequency and severity of
claims incurred but not yet reported to prior year claims, changes in the timing of the reporting of losses from the loss date to
the notification date, and expected costs to settle unpaid claims. Management also monitors the reasonableness of the
judgments made in the prior year’s estimation process and adjusts current year assumptions based on this analysis. Such
adjustments have not been material. Claims reserves of approximately $2,005,000 have been accrued at September 30, 2014,
which are included in other accrued liabilities.

Income taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequence of events that have been recognized in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. Income taxes are recognized during the year in which the underlying transactions are
reflected in the consolidated statement of income. Deferred taxes are provided for temporary differences between amounts of
assets and liabilities as recorded for financial reporting purposes and amounts recorded for tax purposes. After determining the
total amount of deferred tax assets, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that some portion of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. If the Company determines that a deferred tax asset is not likely to be realized, a
valuation allowance is established against that asset to record it at its expected realizable value.

The Company has not recorded a reserve for any tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which
there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. The Company files tax returns in all appropriate jurisdictions, which
includes a U.S. federal tax return and various states. The company is not subject to tax examinations by the U.S. federal,
state, or local tax authorities for years before 2011. There are no unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2014.

Fair value measurements:

The Company uses a framework for measuring fair value of all financial instruments that are being measured and reported on
a fair value basis. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses
various methods including market, income and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, the Company often utilizes
certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or
the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally non observable inputs. The Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques, the
Company is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks
the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will
be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York Stock
Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal agency mortgage-
backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets. Valuations are obtained from
readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations are obtained
from third-party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market exchange,
dealer, or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in
determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

There have been no changes in methodologies used at September 30, 2014.
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Fair value of financial instruments:

The Company's financial instruments not required to be adjusted to fair value on a recurring basis consist principally of cash,
receivables, long-term debt and accounts payable. The Company believes cash, receivables and accounts payable are
recorded at amounts that approximate their current market values based on their short-term nature. The fair value of the long-
term debt instruments approximates their carrying value based on the current market rates and debt instruments of similar risk.

Stock-based compensation:

The Company recognizes compensation cost for all equity awards based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718-10, “Compensation - Stock Compensation”, on a straight-line attribution method.

Independent contractors:

The Company contracts with independent contractor owners of transportation equipment under the terms of short-term
agreements. These agreements contain consecutive automatic renewal periods and are cancelable by either party. The
agreements provide the Company with exclusive use of the independent contractor’s equipment and services, for which the
Company compensates the independent contractor generally on a per mile and load basis, subject to certain escalation
clauses as defined in the agreements. The Company evaluates whether its arrangements with independent contractors
contain a lease at the inception of each arrangement and conducts a reassessment when the contract is modified or when
other changes are made. Costs under these arrangements are expensed as incurred as purchased transportation and are
recorded within direct expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Lease guarantees:

The Company provides limited guarantees to third-party leasing companies with respect to leases entered into by independent
contractors engaged by the Company. Upon a default by the independent contractor, the Company at its option may buy out
the lease at a substantial discount or is provided a “reseating period”. The reseating period allows a definitive period for the
leasing company to re-lease the same vehicle. Until the truck is reseated, the Company is generally obligated for expenses
and lease payments due the leasing company. The aggregate lease payments due under agreements with limited guarantees
were approximately $194,000 at September 30, 2014, while the fair value of the guarantee was not material.

Note 2. Intangible
Assets

Intangible assets at September 30, 2014 are as follows:

 
Estimated Useful

Life
 
 

   
Customer relationships 5 – 11 years  $ 49,166,600
Trade name Indefinite life         9,600,100
Non-compete agreements 5 years         3,723,700
Information technology systems 5 years           933,000
        63,423,400
Less accumulated amortization        47,504,110
Intangible assets, net   $ 15,919,290

Total amortization expense from definite-lived intangibles for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were
approximately $3,700,000 and $4,600,000 respectively.
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The following table presents the Company’s estimate of future amortization expense for the following fiscal years for definite-
lived intangibles:

Year ending December 31,   
2014 (remaining three months)   $ 969,121
2015        3,631,794
2016        1,718,275
   $ 6,319,190

The Company performed an impairment evaluation of its trade name intangible asset as of December 31, 2014. The Company
estimated the fair value of trade name intangible assets using a relief from royalty method. The relief from royalty method is
based on a discounted cash flow analysis and calculates the fair value of the trade name intangible assets by estimating the
after-tax cash flows attributable to it and then discounting the after-tax cash flows to a present value, using a weighted average
cost of capital of 17%. Based on the analysis, it was determined that the fair value of the trade name intangible assets
exceeded the carrying value.

The Company’s estimates assume that revenues will steadily grow into the foreseeable future. There can be no assurance that
the Company’s estimates and assumptions will prove to be accurate predictions of the future. If the Company’s assumptions
regarding business plans, competitive environments or anticipated operating results are not correct, the Company may be
required to record impairment charges in future periods.

Note 3. Equipment and
Improvements

Equipment and improvements, at cost, and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization as of September 30, 2014 is
as follows:

Revenue equipment   $8,545,262
Other equipment     7,477,412
Leasehold improvements     6,719,660
Construction in progress          37,964
   22,780,298
Less accumulated depreciation   15,714,383
   $7,065,915

The cost of equipment capitalized under capital lease obligations, included in revenue equipment, for the period ended
September 30, 2014 was $2,164,772 and the related accumulated amortization was $1,084,308.

In response to the ownership change in July 2013, the Company evaluated its ongoing software conversion project. Additional
funding for the project was ceased based on the current performance of the software relative to the investment, the belief that
migrating any additional business to the software would jeopardize the Company, and the current difficult business conditions.
The Company therefore recorded an abandonment charge of approximately $8,660,000 and is in the process of exploring
alternative solutions.
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Note 4. Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt and capital lease obligations as of September 30, 2014:

Revolver loan payable to Ally Commercial Finance LLC f/k/a GMAC
Commercial Finance LLC, as amended, interest payable monthly (effective
weighted-average interest rate of 7.04%), additional available borrowings of
$3,304,456, matures May 22, 2016

  
  
  
  
  $ 17,400,001

   
Term Loan B payable to Ally Commercial Finance LLC f/k/a GMAC
Commercial Finance LLC, as amended, interest payable monthly (effective
weighted-average interest rate of 6.7%) matures May 22, 2016

  
  
  
       19,920,600

   

Senior Subordinated Notes issued to OCM Mezzanine Fund II, L.P. (a related
party), as amended, will bear interest calculated on a 360-day basis and payable
quarterly in arrears, at an annual rate of 13.00% through maturity. Interest will
be added to the principal amount of the Notes, matures November 22, 2016

  
  
  
  
       16,006,164

   

Subordinated Note to former owner of Texas L&A (a related party), interest
payable in cash monthly (annual interest rate of 10%), matures August 12, 2016

  
  
         1,440,000

   
Subordinated Notes to former owner of Texas L&A (a related party), interest
payable semiannually (annual interest rate of 10%) and, at the option of the
Company, accrued and unpaid interest may be added to the principal amount of
the notes, matures August 12, 2016

  
  
  
  
         1,748,181

   
            735,934
        57,250,880
Less current maturities as of December 31, 2014          2,227,722
   $ 55,023,158

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the years ended December 31, 2015 through 2018 as adjusted for subsequent
refinancing are as follows:

2015   $ 2,608,578
2016        54,352,688
2017              55,173
2018              49,830
   $ 57,066,269

Revolver and Term Loan B:

Towne Air Freight, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary (the “Borrower”); Ally Commercial Finance LLC f/k/a GMAC Commercial
Finance LLC (“Ally”), as Agent and Lender; and Fifth Third Bank (“Chicago”), as Loan Party, entered into a Loan and Security
Agreement (the “LSA”) to provide working capital and funds for other general corporate purposes. The LSA, as amended on
June 19, 2013, provides for credit facilities, which consist of a $28.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) with a $5.0
million sub-limit for standby and commercial letters of credit; and a $22.1 million term loan B (the “Term Loan B”). Borrowings
under the Revolver are subject to a borrowing base that is based on eligible receivables, as defined. The LSA has a maturity
date, with respect to the Revolver and the Term Loan B, of May 22, 2016. At the Borrower’s option, the Revolver and the Term
Loan B bear interest at the following rates: (i) Revolver - LIBOR plus 5.0% or the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System Bank Prime Loan rate (Prime) plus 5.0% calculated on a 360-day basis and payable monthly in arrears, (ii) Term Loan
B - LIBOR plus 5.0% or Prime plus 5.0% calculated on a 360-day basis and payable monthly in arrears. The LSA
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defines LIBOR as the higher of 1.5% or the actual LIBOR rate per annum. In addition, there is a .50% fee payable monthly in
arrears on the average daily unused amount of the Revolver.

The Borrower’s obligations under the LSA are secured by a security interest in and lien upon all of the Borrower’s real and
personal property. Additionally, the Company and each of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Guarantors”) guarantee the
obligations of the Borrower and have granted to Ally a security interest in and lien upon all of the real and personal property of
the Guarantors.

The LSA contains, among other provisions, certain restrictive covenants, including minimum EBITDA, a maximum total
leverage ratio, a maximum senior leverage ratio, a limit on capital expenditures, and a minimum fixed-charge coverage ratio.
Subsequent to December 31, 2012, the Company was not in compliance with certain additional covenants and pursuant to
Amendment No. 10 to the LSA date July 19, 2013, the creditors agreed to waive the violations, modify the restrictive
covenants and extend the maturity for the repayment of the loans. The amended LSA stipulates, among other things, the
Company attain a monthly minimum liquidity amount and limit capital expenditures. The Company is required to comply with
the minimum liquidity covenant each fiscal month, the capital expenditures covenant beginning October 31, 2013.

The LSA allows the Borrower to make voluntary prepayments at any time so long as the balance outstanding under the LSA
obligations is not less than $5,000,000. The LSA includes provisions for additional principal payments based on excess cash
flow whereby the Company is required to make a mandatory principal payment equal to 50% of excess cash flow, as defined.
The Company does not anticipate making additional principal payments during fiscal year 2014.

The Company was contingently liable for outstanding letters of credit of $3,063,332 at September 30, 2014, primarily in
connection with high-deductible insurance plans.

Senior subordinated notes:

The Company issued to OCM Mezzanine Fund II, L.P. (“OCM”, a related party) senior subordinated notes (the “Notes”) in an
aggregate principal amount of $17,500,000. On July 19, 2013, contemporaneous with the execution of Amendment No. 10 to
the LSA, OCM and the Company executed Amendment No. 15 to the Notes. Pursuant to the amendment, the maturity date of
the Notes was extended to November 22, 2016. Additionally, the Notes will bear interest calculated on a 360-day basis and
payable quarterly in arrears, at an annual rate of 13.00% through April 30, 2014, and 11.00% from May 1, 2014, to maturity.
Interest through April 30, 2014, will be added to the principal amount of the Notes, and interest thereafter will be payable in
cash on a quarterly basis. CLP Towne, Inc.

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statement

The Notes, as amended, are due on November 22, 2016. Prior to maturity, the Company has the right to redeem the Notes by
payment of the principal amount of the Notes. Any prepayment must be in a minimum amount of $2,000,000 with minimum
increments of $250,000 thereof plus a premium equal to the applicable percentage multiplied by the principal amount to be
redeemed in the prepayment year, determined as follows: (i) 1.0% premium for the 12-month period ended December 31,
2011, or (ii) 0.0% premium for the 12-month period ended December 21, 2012 and thereafter.

On March 24, 2014, the Company executed Amendment No. 16 to the Notes. Pursuant to the amendment, the Notes will bear
interest calculated on a 360-day basis and payable quarterly in arrears, at an annual rate of 13.0% through December 31,
2014. This interest will be added to the principal amount of the Notes. Interest from January 1, 2015, thereafter, will accrue at a
rate 11% per annum, which amount shall be payable in cash quarterly in arrears on each Quarterly Payment date. At the
option of the Company, the amount payable on March 31, 2015 may be payable at the rate of (i) 13.0% per annum with
respect to 50% of the unpaid principal amount of the Notes, which amount shall be added to the principal amount of the Notes
on such quarterly payment date and (ii) 11.0% per annum with respect to 50% of the unpaid principal amount of the Notes,
which amount shall be payable in cash quarterly in arrears on such quarterly payment date.

The Notes contain, among other provisions, certain restrictive covenants, including a monthly minimum liquidity amount and a
limit on capital expenditures.
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The Company and each of its subsidiaries each unconditionally guarantee, as primary obligor, the payment of principal,
interest, and premium, if any, on the Notes when due.

In accordance with a subordination agreement dated November 22, 2005, the Notes are subordinated in right of payment to
the prior payment of the obligations of the LSA defined previously.

Subordinated notes:

Texas L&A Notes

The Company issued nonnegotiable subordinated notes (the Texas L&A Notes) to the former owner of Texas Land & Air, Inc.
(“Texas L&A”, a related party), acquired by the Company in 2008, in the aggregate original principal amount of $2,525,000 with
a maturity date of August 12, 2016.

The Texas L&A Notes are divided into two tranches. A Texas L&A Note of $1,440,000 bears interest, calculated on a 360-day
basis and payable semiannually in arrears, at an annual rate of 10%, payable in cash. Texas L&A Notes originally totaling
$1,085,000 bear interest, calculated on a 360-day basis and payable semiannually in arrears, at an annual rate of 10%, all of
which may be added to the principal amount of the Texas L&A Notes. At September 30, 2014, $162,529 was added to the
principal amount of the Texas L&A Notes.

The Company has guaranteed, as primary obligor, the payment of principal, interest, and premium, if any, on the Texas L&A
Notes when due.

HBI Seller Note

The Company issued a nonnegotiable subordinated note (the “HBI Seller Note”) to the former owner of HBI (a related party) in
the aggregate original principal amount of $1,500,000.

In accordance with the provisions of the HBI Seller Note, in the event that a target operating income for the in-home delivery
business is not achieved, the principal amount shall be reduced by $500,000 with each such reduction to be deemed effective
as of the date hereof and any interest accrued on such reduced principal shall be deemed null and void. The target was met
for the November 16, 2011 and the November 16, 2012 measurement dates. The HBI Seller Note also incorporates the
purchase-related indemnity obligations of the holder.
The HBI Seller Note bears interest at a rate of 12% per annum, compounded annually, and will accrue on the outstanding
principal amount of the note (after giving effect to any principal reductions as described above).

As of September 30, 2014, $1,000,000 of the original HBI Seller Note was past due. The Note was not paid to fully comply with
the subordination clause. Interest continues to accrue at a rate of 12% per annum.

Note 5. Benefit
Plan

The Company has a profit-sharing plan for substantially all eligible employees. Contributions are discretionary and determined
annually. There were no contributions under this plan for the period ended September 30, 2014.
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Note 6. Income
Taxes

 2014 2013
   
Current:   
Federal $ — $ (34,855)
State — 49,500
 — 14,645
Deferred:   
Federal — 1,208,394
State — 213,246
 — 1,421,640
 — 1,436,285
Total:   
Federal — 1,173,539
State — 262,746
 $ — $ 1,436,285

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of September 30, 2014 is as follows:

Deferred tax assets:   
Accruals and liabilities   $ 2,779,000
Equipment and improvements          1,583,000
Net operating loss carryforwards        14,057,000
Other intangibles          2,751,040
Share-based compensation            368,000
AMT credits              80,000
        21,618,040
   
Deferred tax liabilities:   
Trade name        (3,840,040)
Prepaids           (110,000)
        (3,950,040)
Less valuation reserve      (21,508,040)
      (25,458,080)
   
  Net deferred taxes   $ (3,840,040)
   

Presented in the accompanying balance sheet as follows:

Current assets   $ 2,669,000
Net long-term liability        14,999,000
Less valuation reserve      (21,508,040)
Net deferred taxes   $ (3,840,040)

The Company has state and federal net operating loss carryforwards (the “NOL”) of approximately $35,143,000 which begin to
expire in 2025.
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As of September 30, 2014, management has determined it is more likely than not that the tax benefit of the Company’s
deferred tax assets may not be realized in the future; therefore, a valuation reserve has been recorded.

Note 7. Stock Option
Plan

The Company has an equity compensation plan, which reserves shares of common stock for the issuance to executives, key
employees, directors, and others. In 2013, the company modified its plan.

The modified 2013 plan consists of time-vesting options that vest and are recognized on a straight-line basis over a seven-
year period. The Company’s 2005 plan consists of both time-vesting and performance-based options. Time-vesting options
from the 2005 plan vest and are recognized on a straight-line basis over a five-year period. The stock options under both plans
expire ten years from the date of grant. Performance-based options from the 2005 plan are eligible for exercise on the date the
Company’s partnership fund receives internal rate of return or multiple of investment targets upon sale of its common stock of
the Company as outlined in plan documents. All stock options have an exercise price of no less than 100% of fair market value
of a share of common stock at the time of grant.

The following is a summary of changes in the number of stock options outstanding:

 2014 2013
   
Balance at beginning of year             3,832                   257
Granted             1,612                3,687
Cancelled            (2,527)                 (112)
Balance at end of period             2,917                3,832
   

There were 224 options exercisable at September 30, 2014. There were 2,441 stock options available for grant at September
30, 2014. All options have an exercise price of $10 per option.

The value of the Company’s stock-based awards under ASC 718-10 issued during the period ended September 30, 2013 were
estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions: expected
life of 6.5 years, risk-free interest rate of 1.95%, volatility rate of approximately 30%, and dividend rate of 0%. The expected life
of 6.5 years is based on management’s expectation that, on average, stock options will be exercised upon becoming fully
vested. For those awards issued during 2014, the Company used the results of the subsequent event described in Note 11 as
a basis of estimating the fair value. The Company has not declared dividends on common stock and does not expect to do so
in the foreseeable future. Stock-based compensation expense recognized as of September 30, 2014 and 2013 was
approximately $154,000 and $130,000 respectively. As of September 30, 2014, total compensation costs related to nonvested
awards not yet recognized was approximately $794,000 which will be recognized over each of the next five fiscal years.

Note 8. Preferred Stock and Common Stock
Warrants

On November 16, 2010 (the Closing Date), the Company issued no par Series A preferred stock (the “Preferred Shares”). In
addition, the Company issued 7,700 warrants (the “Warrants”) for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock at
an exercise price of $0.01 per share. Net proceeds from the issuance totaled approximately $16,670,000 and were used to
fund an acquisition, including transaction costs and to repay outstanding indebtedness.

As discussed in Note 1, on July 19, 2013 the SPEA authorized and issued 3,533,400 shares of common stock in exchange for
all of the issued and outstanding redeemable Series A preferred stock of the Company. In addition, the Company issued 7,700
warrants for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock. Thus, all preferred stock and existing warrants
outstanding as of the date of the transaction were fully converted to common stock and none remained outstanding as of July
19, 2013. The fair value of the warrants at the date of the transaction was $77,000 valued in light of the related stock
transaction and was reclassified from debt to additional paid in capital as of the date of the transaction.
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Warrants were issued on July 19, 2013 in connection with the SPEA for the purchase of 268,322 shares of the Company’s
common stock in connection with the issuance of common stock as outlined in Note 1. The warrants have an initial exercise
price of $15 per share subject to certain anti-dilution and other adjustments.

The LSA, as amended and discussed in Note 4, issued Unsecured Subordinated (2014) Notes in the amount of $4,000,000.
The Notes contain a convertible feature which preferred stock shall have a par value of $10.00 per share, with 400,000 shares
of preferred stock issued. Liquidation preference shall be (a) 5 times $10.00 per share if the preferred stock is redeemed within
12 months of issuance, (b) 7 times $10.00 per share if the preferred stock is redeemed 12 and 24 months of issuance and (c)
8.5 times $10.00 per share if the preferred stock is redeemed between 24 and 33 months of issuance.

Note 9. Commitments and
Contingencies

Operating lease commitments:

The Company has various operating leases for real property expiring through January 2021. Generally, the leases require the
Company to pay property taxes, insurance, and maintenance on the leased property. The Company also leases equipment
under various operating leases (including contracts with independent contractors accounted for as leases) through December
2019 and thereafter. Future minimum rental payments under these operating lease agreements are approximately as follows:

 Real  Equipment  
 Property  Leases Total
Year Ending December 31,    
2014 (remaining three months)  $ 3,083,661  $ 1,336,682  $ 4,420,343
2015    11,626,025      5,138,581    16,764,606
2016    10,801,391      5,044,222    15,845,613
2017      9,881,271      3,665,619    13,546,890
2018      7,874,731      3,101,194    10,975,925
2019      5,427,360      2,103,150      7,530,510
Thereafter      5,260,920      1,488,701      6,749,621
  $ 53,955,359  $ 21,878,149  $ 75,833,508

Rent expense for real property leases for the period ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 aggregated approximately
$9,950,000 and $9,926,000, of which none was paid to related parties.

Rent expense for equipment leases aggregated approximately $2,163,000 and $3,765,000 for the period ended September 30,
2014 and 2013 respectively.

In connection with the purchase of the Company, by Charterhouse, in November 2005, the Company recognized an
unfavorable lease obligation related to real property leases of approximately $1.7 million, which is being recognized as a
reduction of rent expense over the respective lives of the leases of four to eight years.

Litigation:

From time to time, the Company is a party to litigation arising in the normal course of its business, most of which involves
claims for personal injury, property damage related to the transportation and handling of freight, or workers’ compensation. The
Company does not believe that any of these pending actions, individually or in the aggregate, will have a materially adverse
effect on its business, financial position, or results of operations.

Note 10. Related-Party
Transactions

Upon the request of Centre Lane Partners, LLC (“Centre Lane”), the majority owner of the Company, the Company is
contractually obligated to pay a management fee to Centre Lane equal to the greater of $300,000 or 2% of the Company’s
EBITDA, as outlined in the stockholders’ agreement. At September 30, 2014 there was approximately $317,000 of fees
accrued.
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OCM Mezzanine Fund II (“OCM”) has an equity interest in the Company. On November 22, 2005, the Company issued to
OCM senior subordinated notes in an aggregate principal amount of $17,500,000. Interest expense for the period ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, related to this obligation was approximately $1,460,000 for both periods of which none was
accrued at September 30, 2014, and approximately $1,610,000 and $1,073,000 was added to principal for the period ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively.

On August 12, 2009, the Company issued to the former owner of Texas L&A an equity interest in the Company in the form of
notes aggregating $2,525,000. Interest expense related to this obligation totaled approximately $234,000 and $221,000 for the
period ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively, of which approximately $163,000 and $76,000 was added to the
principal for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively.

On November 16, 2010, the Company issued to the former owner of HBI, an equity interest in the Company in the form of a
nonnegotiable subordinated note in the amount of $1,500,000. Interest expense related to this obligation totaled approximately
$90,000 and $92,000 for the period ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively.

Note 11. Subsequent
Events

Effective March 9, 2015, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) and was
acquired by Forward Air, Inc. (“Forward Air”). Forward Air paid aggregate cash consideration of approximately $125,000,000.
The purchase price may be increased or reduced based upon the Company’s net working capital as of the closing date. The
Merger Agreement also provides that $16,500,000 of the $125,000,000 purchase price will be placed into an escrow account,
with $2,000,000 of such amount being available to settle any shortfall in the Company’s net working capital and with
$14,500,000 of such amount being available for a period of time to settle certain possible claims against the Company’s
common stockholders for indemnification. To the extent the escrow fund is insufficient, certain equity holders have agreed to
indemnify Forward Air, subject to certain limitations set forth in the Merger Agreement, as a result of inaccuracies in or
breaches of certain of the Company’s representations, warranties, covenants and agreements and other matters.



Exhibit 99.3

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollar Amounts are Presented in Thousands)

On March 9, 2015, Forward Air Corporation ("Forward Air" or the "Company") through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Forward Air, Inc.,
acquired CLP Towne Inc. (“Towne”) pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) resulting in Towne
becoming an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. For the acquisition of Towne, the Company paid $120,994 in cash
consideration and approximately $774 in purchase price that may be payable to certain employees. Approximately $59,029 of the cash
consideration was used to settle Towne's previously existing debt. Of the total aggregate cash consideration paid, $16,500 was placed into
an escrow account, with $2,000 of such amount being available to settle any shortfall in Towne’s net working capital and with $14,500 of
such amount being available for a period of time to settle certain possible claims against Towne’s common stockholders for
indemnification. To the extent the escrow fund is insufficient, certain equity holders have agreed to indemnify Forward Air, subject to
certain limitations set forth in the Merger Agreement, as a result of inaccuracies in or breaches of certain of Towne’s representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements and other matters. Forward Air financed the Merger Agreement with a $125,000 two year term loan.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and related notes combine the historical consolidated balance
sheets and statements of operations of Forward Air and the combined balance sheet and statements of operations of Towne. Forward Air
and Towne both have a fiscal year end as of December 31.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 give effect to the acquisition of Towne as if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2013. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined balance sheet assumes that the acquisition of Towne was completed on September 30, 2014. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined balance sheet and condensed combined statement of operations of Forward Air as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 were derived from its unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2014 (as filed on
Form 10-Q with the SEC on October 24, 2014 ). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of Forward Air for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Forward Air for the year
ended December 31, 2013 (as filed on Form 10-K with the SEC on February 19, 2014). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined
statement of operations of Towne as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 were derived from its unaudited combined
financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of
operations of Towne for the year ended December 31, 2013 were derived from the audited combined financial statements of Towne for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

The historical consolidated financial information of Forward Air and combined financial information of Towne have been adjusted in the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the
acquisiton of Towne, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact
on the combined results. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.



Forward Air Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2014
(In thousands)

 
          

 Forward Air  Towne  
Adjustments

2(a)    
Pro Forma
Combined

Assets          
Current assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,573  $ 8  $ 4,029  (1)  $ 28,610
Accounts receivable, net 100,016  30,775  —    130,791
Other current assets 14,057  5,962  —    20,019

Total current assets 138,646  36,745  4,029    179,420
          
Net property and equipment 176,496  7,066  (4,270)  (2)  179,292
Goodwill and other acquired intangibles:          

Goodwill 140,678  —  56,253  (3)  196,931
Other acquired intangibles, net of
accumulated amortization 71,778  15,919  54,081  (4)  141,778

Total net goodwill and other acquired
intangibles 212,456  15,919  110,334    338,709
Other assets 2,347  984  —    3,331
Total assets $ 529,945  $ 60,714  $ 110,093    $ 700,752
          
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity          
Current liabilities:          

Accounts payable $ 21,395  $ 17,862  $ —    $ 39,257
Accrued expenses 23,356  13,931  6,478  (5)  43,765
Current portion of debt and capital lease
obligations 280  3,228  53,064  (6)  56,572

Total current liabilities 45,031  35,021  59,542    139,594
         $ —
Debt and capital lease obligations, less current
portion 1,346  55,023  14,421  (6)  70,790
Other long-term liabilities 8,148  —  3,799  (7)  11,947
Deferred income taxes 28,838  6,509  5,792  (4),(8)  41,139
         
Shareholders’ equity:         

Common stock 302  5  (5)  (9)  302
Preferred stock —  4,000  (4,000)  (9)  —
Additional paid-in capital 126,516  76,493  (76,493)  (9)  126,516
Retained earnings 319,764  (116,337)  107,037  (5),(9)  310,464

Total shareholders’ equity 446,582  (35,839)  26,539    437,282
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 529,945  $ 60,714  $ 110,093    $ 700,752
          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial
statements.



Forward Air Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014
(In thousands, except per share data)

 
        
        

 Forward Air  Towne  
Adjustments

3(a)    
Pro Forma
Combined

Operating revenue $ 566,897  $ 193,646  $ (22,112)  (1)  $ 738,431
          
Operating expenses:          
Purchased transportation 242,259  107,500  (22,112)  (1)  327,647
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 131,464  43,489      174,953
Operating leases 25,019  15,457      40,476
Depreciation and amortization 22,879  5,915  (1,490)  (2)  27,304
Insurance and claims 10,978  4,523      15,501
Fuel expense 14,990  3,813      18,803
Other operating expenses 48,537  21,230  (225)  (3)  69,542
Total operating expenses 496,126  201,927  (23,827)   674,226
Income from operations 70,771  (8,281)  1,715   64,205
          
Other income (expense):          

Interest expense (355)  (3,656)  2,382  (4)  (1,629)
Other, net 144  —      144

Total other income (expense) (211)  (3,656)  2,382  (4)  (1,485)
Income before income taxes 70,560  (11,937)  4,097   62,720
Income taxes 26,437  —  (2,603)  (5)  23,834
Net income and comprehensive income $ 44,123  $ (11,937)  $ 6,700   $ 38,886
          
Net income per share:          
Basic $ 1.44  $ (0.39)  $ 0.22    $ 1.27
Diluted $ 1.41  $ (0.38)  $ 0.21    $ 1.24
Weighted average shares outstanding:          
Basic 30,710  30,710  30,710    30,710
Diluted 31,234  31,234  31,234    31,234
          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial
statements.



Forward Air Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(In thousands, except per share data)

 
    
    

 Forward Air  Towne  
Adjustments

3(a)    
Pro Forma
Combined

Operating revenue $ 652,481  $ 264,727  $ (29,109)  (1)  $ 888,099
          
Operating expenses:          
Purchased transportation 285,690  146,868  (29,109)  (1)  403,449
Salaries, wages and employee
benefits 151,097  61,433      212,530
Operating leases 29,310  21,971      51,281
Depreciation and
amortization 23,579  9,605  (3,832)  (2)  29,352
Insurance and claims 12,619  9,307      21,926
Fuel expense 15,145  6,105      21,250
Other operating expenses 50,686  37,842  (300)  (3)  88,228
Total operating expenses 568,126  293,131  (33,241)    828,016
Income from operations 84,355  (28,404)  4,132    60,083
          
Other income (expense):          

Interest expense (532)  (5,056)  3,361  (4)  (2,227)
Other, net 99  —      99

Total other expense (433)  (5,056)  3,361  (4)  (2,128)
Income before income taxes 83,922  (33,460)  7,493    57,955
Income taxes 29,455  (219)  (7,213)  (5)  22,023
Net income $ 54,467  $ (33,241)  $ 14,706    $ 35,932
          
Net income per share:          
Basic $ 1.81  $ (1.10)  $ 0.49    $ 1.19
Diluted $ 1.77  $ (1.08)  $ 0.48    $ 1.17
Weighted average shares
outstanding:          
Basic 30,135  30,135  30,135    30,135
Diluted 30,762  30,762  30,762    30,762
          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated
financial statements.



Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Data

(Dollar Amounts are Presented in Thousands)
1. Towne Purchase Price

The purchase price for Towne of $121,768 and the allocation of purchase price discussed below are preliminary, and subject to certain
post-closing adjustments. A final determination of required adjustments will be made based upon an independent appraisal of the fair value
of related long-lived intangible assets and the determination of the fair value of certain other acquired assets and assumed liabilities. The
preliminary purchase price of $121,768 was paid with net cash provided by a $125,000 two year term loan.

The following tables summarize the purchase price allocation adjustments of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as if the acquisition
date was September 30, 2014. The final allocation of the purchase price will be determined at a later date and is dependent on a number of
factors, including the final evaluation of the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Final
adjustments, including increases or decreases to amortization resulting from the allocation of the purchase price to amortizable intangible
assets, may be material. Adjustments to the fair value of intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed will impact the value of goodwill
recognized in the acquisition of Towne, and the adjustment to goodwill may be material. For illustrative purposes, the preliminary
allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of Towne’s assets acquired and liabilities assumed assuming the acquisition date was
September 30, 2014 is presented as follows:

Estimated Allocation of Purchase Price as of September 30, 2014
Tangible assets:
Accounts receivable $ 30,775
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,962
Property and equipment 2,796
Other assets 984

Total tangible assets 40,517
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships 70,000
Goodwill 56,253

Total intangible assets 126,253
Total assets acquired 166,770

Liabilities assumed:
Current liabilities 31,793
Other liabilities 3,822
Debt and capital lease obligations 58,251
Deferred income taxes 12,301

Total liabilities assumed 106,167
Net assets acquired $ 60,603

The following table shows the calculation of net assets acquired:



Calculation of Net Assets
Carrying value of Towne net liabilities $ (35,839 )
Less: Historic cash and cash equivalents (8 )
Less: Fair value adjustment to property and equipment (4,270 )
Plus: Fair value of customer relationships asset 70,000
Less: Historic identifiable intangible assets (15,919 )
Plus: Valuation on deferred tax assets 21,508
Less: Deferred tax liability on acquired customer relationship asset (27,300 )
Less: Fair value of long term liabilities (3,822 )
Plus: Fair value of goodwill 56,253
Carrying value of Towne net assets acquired $ 60,603

2. Description of Towne Conforming and Pro Forma Adjustments, as presented on the September 30, 2014 Balance Sheet

(a)    Represents purchase price adjustments for the acquisition of Towne as follows:

(1) Represents an adjustment for the total transaction price of $121,768 less $774 in amounts that may be owed to certain
employees. See footnote 6 for information on related debt borrowings.

(2) The adjustment of $4,270 is the result of the preliminary valuation of property and equipment acquired with
Towne.

(3) Records the preliminary fair value of goodwill resulting from the pro forma allocation of the purchase price assuming an
acquisition date of September 30, 2014. Goodwill resulting from the acquisition is not amortized, and will be assessed for
impairment at least annually in accordance with applicable accounting guidance on goodwill. The goodwill as a result of
this acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.

(4) Represents a $70,000 preliminary allocation of purchase price to non-contractual customer relationships. This adjustment
to identifiable intangible assets was recorded net of historical net identifiable intangible assets of $15,919. A estimated
deferred tax liability of $27,300 was recorded due to the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to identifiable
intangible assets.

(5) Represents adjustments to account for transaction costs of approximately $9,300 related to the Towne acquisition, net of
tax. The transaction fees are net of the elimination in purchase price accounting of $2,399 for Towne's historical deferred
rent liability, $166 for management fees payable to Towne's former owners and $257 in deferred gains associated with
previous sale-leaseback transactions.

(6) The pro forma balance sheet reflects the borrowing of a $125,000 through a two year term loan. Approximately 11% of
the outstanding term loan balance is due each quarter after borrowing. As a result, $55,556 of the outstanding term loan is
classified as current maturities in the September 30, 2014 pro forma balance sheet. This adjustment has been recorded net
of $57,515 in Towne related debt that was immediately settled following the acquisition. Approximately $2,492 of the
settled debt was classified in current maturities as of September 30, 2014.

(7) Represents an adjustment to record the $774 of purchase price that may be payable to certain employees, see note 1 for
additional discussion. Also, includes an adjustment to record a $3,025 liability for needed facility repairs to leased Towne
facilities assumed with the acquisition that are required under the facility lease agreements.

(8) In addition to the deferred tax liability discussed in note 4 above, this includes an adjustment to release the Towne
valuation allowance of $21,508. The valuation allowance was released due to the expected profitability of the combined
entity being sufficient to allow for utilization of the deferred tax assets, which are primarily net operating losses.

(9) Represents adjustments to eliminate Towne's historical common stock, preferred stock, additional paid-in capital and
accumulated deficit.



3. Description of Towne Conforming and Pro Forma Adjustments, as presented in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Statement of Operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013

(a) Represents conforming reclassification adjustments and purchase price adjustments for the acquisition of Towne as
follows:
(1) To reclassify net fuel surcharge expenses paid to owner-operators and third party transportation providers of $22,112 for

the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and $29,109 for the year ended December 31, 2013, respectively, in order to
net the fuel surcharge expense with the associated fuel surcharge revenue in accordance with Forward Air presentation.
Forward Air nets the fuel surcharges billed to customers and paid to owner-operators and third party transportation
providers as the Company is not the primary obligor with regards to the fuel surcharges.

(2) To record pro forma depreciation and and amortization expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and the
year ended December 31, 2013 on the portion of the purchase price allocated to intangible assets and property and
equipment.    

    

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2014  

Year Ended
December
31, 2013

Towne historical amortization of intangible assets $ (3,373)  $ (5,641)
Towne amortization of deferred loan costs (186)  (341)
Amortization of acquired customer relationships 2,625  3,500
Savings on valuation of property and equipment (556)  (1,350)
Pro forma adjustment $ (1,490)  $ (3,832)

(3) Adjustments to remove $225 from the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and $300 from the year ended December
31, 2013 of management fees charged by the former owners.

(4) The acquisition of Towne was funded by a $125,000 two year term loan and all previously existing Towne debt, except
capital leases, were paid off simultaneously with the closing of the acquisition. This pro forma adjustment eliminates the
interest associated with the settled Towne debt and records interest expense based on the $125,000 term loan at a rate of
1.3%. The interest rate reflects the variable rate on the term loan at the time of acquisition and is consistent with the rate
available on our credit facility during the pro forma periods.        

Nine Months
Ended September

30, 2014  

Year Ended
December 31,

2013
Towne interest expense 3,601  4,986
Pro forma interest on term loan (1,219)  (1,625)
Pro forma adjustment $ 2,382  $ 3,361

    
(5) Adjustments to the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and year ended December 31, 2013 to record income tax

expense at an estimated statutory rate of 38%.


